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                 CELEBRATE MEMORIAL DAY 

                                                              

CHINESE CONTRIBUTION TO  

         GLENDALE HISTORY 

Arnold K. Ong was an important part of Glendaleôs development and cultural 

understanding. Arnold was born in China in 1929 and passed away in Glendale 

in 1997. His father came to Phoenix in 1930 from China and opened up a gro-

cery at 901 West Hadley. Arnold came to Phoenix at age four. His father bought 

two lots in Glendale in 1940 and built Geneôs Market at 60th and Glendale Ave-

nues. Arnold attended Glendale Elementary School and Glendale High School, 

graduating in 1948, and attended Arizona State University for two years but left 

college when his father died in 1950. He took over running Geneôs Market for 

32 years until he sold the business and retired in 1983. The grocery store was 

about 3,000 sq. ft., which he expanded to 6,000 sq. ft. 

Arnold said it was quiet growing up in Glendale. Sports were popular, and Ar-

nold participated in high school football. Other Chinese were in Phoenix and 

any socialization was after work at night or special occasions. In fact, Arnold 

met his future wife, who came from California, at George Singôs daughterôs 

wedding. Arnold remembered that during WWII some products, such as ciga-

rettes and Jell-O, were scarce. The products were hidden in the back and of-

fered only to regular customers. 

Arnoldôs father impressed upon him not to be aggressive or exhibit bad behav-
ior, since that would make citizens think poorly of the Chinese. The Chinese in-
stead were intent on becoming successful in business. Arnold and one of the 
officers of Thunderbird Bank became close friends, often having lunch togeth-
er. One day driving home the bank officer said to Arnold ñYou have a pretty 
nice house.ò Across the street was George Singôs house and he said, ñ George 
has a nice house, and down the street Dr. Kon has a nice house. ñHow in the 
hell do you guys do it?ò Arnold answered, ñIf you and your wife both work 16 
hours a day, after 20 or 30 years, thatôs how you earn it.ò His friend then said, 
ñI canôt think of any person that can work over 40 hours a week. I donôt think a 
body should be able to go over 40 hours a week.ò Nevertheless, Arnoldôs store 
was open seven days a week from 8 a.m. to 9 p.m. except for Christmas Day. 

 

OFFICES ARE STILL 

CLOSED; MEETINGS, 

TOURS AND WED-

DINGS ARE STILL  

CANCELLED. 
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6818 N. 60th Avenue George O. Dowdy rental cottage and house layout 

HISTORIC COBBLESTONE GLENDALE COTTAGE 

This small unique cobblestone cottage is located in the 1908 Orchard Addition, set back 80 feet from the front proper-

ty line. The yard is flood-irrigated. The house is L shaped and about 24 feet wide and 28 feet deep with a 14-foot add-

tion at the rear. It is similar to a National Folk Style house with the gable front and a wing. The roof is a low-pitched 

gable. The cobbles were brought from the New River, six miles away. The stones were laid on a concrete foundation. 

The cottage was listed on the National Register of Historic Places on April 30, 2009. 

George O. Dowdy, who built the cottage in 1932, was born September 25, 1878 in Conway, Arkansas. He married in 
1899 and came to Arizona in 1914 or 1915. George worked in the mines at Octave and Stanton and moved to Glendale 
in 1916. He spent the next 14 years as foreman for the Rudolph Johnson ranch at 99th Avenue and Northern Avenue. 
He saved his money and bought several properties in the Glendale area. George built a house on each lot and rented 
them out. In 1929 he went to work for the City of Glendale for 11 years as a garbage truck driver. He kept buying prop-
erties and building rental houses. He bought the Tuttle house at 6818 N 60th Avenue (Second Street) and referred to it 
as the ñfront houseò. In 1932 George built the George O. Dowdy rental cottage near the back of the lot as a rental. Then 
in the late 1930s he built a third house south of the front house. The third house burned in the 1950s, and the front 
house was demolished, leaving the little cobblestone house. He built the cobblestone house himself. During WWII, in 
1941, George was a security officer at Luke Field. During the 1950s, he ran the Gulf Oil/Humble Service Station across 
from the Glendale High School until retiring in 1960. George died in January, 1971, at the age of 92. Georgeôs daugh-
ter, Verma lived in the cobblestone cottage until she died in 2000. 

NEW FRUIT TREES FOR MANISTEE RANCH 

Charlie Sands suggested the planting of five fruit trees at Manistee Ranch and donated funds to purchase 
them. John Geurs coordinated the project with Charlie and bought the trees from Greenfield Citrus Nurse-
ry. Larry Rovey and others transported the trees and dug the holes for planting. Bill Greb and John Geurs 
helped plant the trees, which included Valencia Orange 18ò (with two dozen oranges on it), Macetera Or-
ange 24ò, Robertson Navel Orange 24ò, Oroblanco Grapefruit 24ò and Kinnow Tangerine 24ò. All were 
balled and burlapped. The Board of Directors wishes to thank all who participated in this important project 
to improve the historical setting of Manistee Ranch. Thank you Charlie and Jennifer Sands for your finan-
cial donation. 
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Dr. Robert Ashe graduated from Glendale High School in 1931. He received a baccalaureate 

from the University of Southern California in 1935; masterôs degree in 1942 and doctorate 

from USC in 1953. 

In 1910, the Glendale School District boundary extended east to 16th Street and north to Bell 
Road. Washington and Alhambra Elementary School District students had to  

go to Phoenix Union High School. Dr. Ashe successfully established the Sunnyslope High School, some nine miles from Glendale 

High School, but Washington School District voters turned down the establishment of Washington High School. Residents were 

upset and circulated a petition signed by many property owners asking the school board to place the school on the ballot again. It 

passed. 

The first year that Dr. Ashe was superintendent of Peoria School District in 1943, the district had a few black students, and Dysart 

School District had several black families. The two districts established a one-room, two-outhouse school in Marinette for 16 to 18 

black students, which operated for two years. In 1945, Dr. Ashe integrated the students into the schools, even going against state 

law, saying, ñéwe just knew it was right.ò Dr. Ashe later became superintendent of the Glendale School District, and the same 

black students asked to attend Glendale High School. ñWe signed them upò, he said. Arizona state courts declared segregation 

illegal in 1953, and Phoenix High School District closed the all-black Carver High School. 

Dr. Ashe, in his 1991 oral history interview, talked  at length about Glendaleôs outstanding business leaders and Chamber of Com-
merce activities. He told about Frank Carter who earlier had owned a menôs clothing store and later was hired by the school dis-
trict. Every morning he would come to the office dressed looking like the superintendent. He would change clothes in the locker 
room, put on his work uniform and go to work. After work, he would take off his work clothes, take a shower, put on his fine suit 

EARLY INTEGRATION OF PEORIA AND GLENDALE SCHOOLS 

The first few months of 2021 are still filled with uncertainty. The coronavirus vaccines are be-

coming available, and those eligible to take the two injections need to do so. You are not only 

helping to stamp out the pandemic and protect others, but you are also making history. We all 

still need to wear masks in public and practice social distancing, as well as wash our hands and 

use sanitizer. 

The Board can be proud of the intense effort made to accomplish the considerable repairs to the 
Manistee Ranch historic buildings and grounds. Maintenance is being done by member volun-
teers and repairs by local contractor J B. Espinoza. Making Manistee Ranch one of the best 
maintained National Register of Historic Places sites in Arizona is also due to the financial dona-
tions of society members and Glendale City Councilmembers. The City of Glendale Department 
of Parks and Recreation has continually provided help to Manistee Ranch, for which the Board is 
grateful. Thank you all for helping to preserve and promote Glendaleôs history. 

PRESIDENTôS 

 MESSAGE 

Hatsuye (Hotsy) Miyauchi lived in Glendale from 1946 to 1999. She was born in 
1911 and died in 2000 at age 88. Hotsyôs parents and siblings, were interned in re-
location camps during WWII. She did not go since she had moved with her hus-
band, Dr. Yukio Miyauchi, to his first military assignment in the U.S. Army. After 
WWII they moved to Glendale and he practiced medicine. Hotsy became active in 
the Japanese American Citizens League, Glendale Womanôs Club and was a strong 
supporter of ASU Sun Devils. Hotsy enjoyed, traveling, cooking for others, profes-
sional sports, playing cards and attending plays. Yes, she did live a full life. 

                             GLENDALE RESIDENT LIVED A FULL LIFE 
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